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PROCEEDINGS OF MAY 10, 2006

THE COURT:

But I don't
MS. DIXON:

THE COURT:

(An off-the-

* ok ke ok ok ok

The hearing will be in order, and

- you may resume the stand, Mr. Cernero.

gee him.
He had to take an errand.
Yeah, he'll be back.

record conversation was held, after

which the following continued:)

THE COURT:

Mr. Cernero.

MS. DIXON:
THE COURT:

MS. DIXON:
the cross beéins
statement on the

THE COURT:

MS. DIXCON:

THE COURT:
Ms. Dixon.

MS., DIXON:

You may resume the stand,

Are we on the record?

Yes, we'll go on the record.

Yéur Honor, before the testimony or
again,lcould I make a brief

reqord?

Yes, you can.

I'1l let you get settled down.

You may make your statement,

Okay. Your Honor, in the interest

of saving time and not objecting -- continuing to

object to Respondent's cross, in the event that Your

Honor continues to allow them to pursue the line of

questioning that goes into enforcement and compliance
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history regardiﬁg prior cases of EPA, ‘and as well as
actions in Indian county (sic), we could like to just
make a standing objection and not to continue to
object while Respondent is guestioning the witnesses.

THE COURT: That's perfectly satisfactory and |
understood that you have a continuing objection'to
that line of testimony.

MS. DIXON: ‘And we want to make sure that it's

on the record that our -- our objection is based upon

immaterial; irrélevancy, and little to no probative
value, as well as regarding Titan Wheel Corporation
of Iowa, where the EAB held that the ALJ did not err
in exéluding evidence sought to be admitted by the
Respondent to other penalty assessment proceedings by
beth EPA and the state of Missouri.

So that's the first thing. And then the second
thing, Your Honor, I needed some clarity about -- I

know Mr. Kellogg said yesterday because of new

developments in the case they wanted to take a

different approach to crossing our witness.

And T didn't quite uﬁderstand, and my co—counsél
and I were talking about it, so we were wondering
could we get some clarity about the approach that he
wanted to.take. |

THE COURT: Mr. Kellogg, do you wish to address
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that?
MR. KELLOGG: Certainly, Your Honor. Since we
stipulated to the -- or accepted the violations

yvesterday, that altered our entire strategy, and so

we had to reformat our noteboocks and our order of

-questioning'for the witnesses.

And as a result of that, it was a little
disjointed yesterday. Last night, I was able to go
through and reformat all of our information so it
matches not only the order that we #ish to pursue,
but the correct rules.

If you regall, Your Honor, yesterday, there was
some cénfusion over the 2005 version versus the 2004
version --

THE COURT: Exactly.

MR. KELLOGG: - of the Cdrporation Commission.
rules. And I have since resolved that. And-I_think
my poftion of the examination of this witness will
take no more than a half hour or so.

And then I'll ask Mr. Shipley to resume on the
effects of the policy of EPA'S enforcement and its
iﬁplications. |

My focus will be on the technical elements of
ﬁhe violations towards mitigation of the penalties.

MS. DIXON: And EPA wants to just make sure that
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we are on record that we object to the tactical
approach of crossing the witness, Your Honor. We
feel it is unreasonable, and it is undue délay.

We are -- these are seasoned trial attorneys,

~and the fact that they stipulated to the liability at

the last moment at the ninth hour, should not have
any bearing on how this court should'procéed.

THE COURT: Well, your -- your statement is
noted, but you may proceed, Mr. Kellogg.

MR. KELLOGG: Thank you, Your Honor.

*hkhkkhkkk

CROSS EXAMINATION (CONT‘D.)

BY MR. KELLOGG:

 Good morning, Mr. Cernero.

Good morning.

I see that YOU made it through last night's bombast

in a fine fashion.
Yes.
Rather a loud night, wasn't it?
Yes.- I'm still hurfing.

Yes. Well, that's EPA's welcome to our state, I

guess. ‘I would like to resume in -- in pretty much the

same fashion that we télked yesterday, only much more

organized on my part; And I apologize for not being

‘organized yesterday.
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I'd like you to turn, sir, tc Count 10 of the

complaint. That would be Goodwin's One Stop in

Hartshorne. &and I believe that count deals with one

cracked spill bucket on one of the tanké; 18 that correct?
I would not say craéked. I would say a gaping hole.
Ckay, a gaping hole.
Uh-huh.
And T would like you to look at EPA Exhibit 30. That
w@uld be --
I don't have the exhibit.
MS. BEAVER: The Complaint.
THE WITNESS: Oh, I got it.
MR. KELLOGG: Oh, no, no, no. EPA Exhibit 30 is
the OCC rules. |
MS. BEAVER:V The OCC regs;
THE WITNESS: Okay, I got that. The '94 (sic)
rules? Okay, I have got that.
(By Mr. Kellogyg:) Okay. And if I could help a
little bit, page 24, sir.
Okay.
And is Rule 25-2-39 --
Uh-huh.
-- the right rﬁle?
I found it. Did you....

"Spill and Overflow Protection."
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Right, "Spill and Overfill Protection.™

Okay . And I believe paragraph (f) (1) is the one that
addresses preventing-release of a product; is that
correct?

Yes.

Ckay. Now, if you would,'sir, turn to page 70 of
that same rule; that would be Appendix S. And we see
there is a citation to Rule 2-39.1, right? But I don't
see anything that references 2-39(f) (1), do you?

No.

Ckay. But 2-39.1 is about accepting delivery into a

tank that does not have spill protection, right?

Correct.

And the OCC's penalty for that is héw ﬁuch, sir?

According to this, $1,000.

Correct. .And that's for one that does not have spill
protection, correct?

Yes.

Okay. And but -- but a lesser included offense might
be a dirty -- or a spill bucket with a gaping hole. And
we can -- there'é not a particular listing for that.

No, there's no listing for that.

All right. Do.you know, sir, what the capacity is of
the normai spill bucket that meets EPA's standardé?

The -- the standard in the industry; although EPA
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does not Jdesignate® what that is 77

nil right.

~-.18 five 7 about five gallons:

apout five gallons?

(Wods head.)

okay -

transfer hos

apout 25 gallons'or 507

1f it was & complete,

apout & 15-foot 1ength

gallons.

rpifteen gallons?

Yeah, if it'® full.

-standards can

nose. can it

Q
. assuning chere's excess

after the hose€ has peen emptied.
okay - .And now Luxrn pack: if you‘would, ro padge 24.
1 pelieve ig's Ony actually, the top'of pagde 25

nhold product

1s chat
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not correct, sgir?

Yes. Says "gpill prévention_equipment that will
prevent releases of product to the environment when the
transfer hose is detached from the fill pipe.”

Okay.

"For example, a spill bucket or a drain system."

Okay. And don't thosge hoses work by gravity?

Most éf the time, yes.'

All right. And so they were just -- normally, they
woula just drain into the tank.

Norﬁally, yes.

Okay.

That's what they are Supposed to do.

Okay. Now, you charged this vioclation for one day,
and that does seem somewhat lenient. But you'wve also
listed it as a major-major, zright?’

Yes.

Do you need to fefer -- okay. And you also listed
Quik Mart, which your Complaint alleged were no spill

Yes.

All'right;‘ Can you tell mé what -- what a
minor-minor vioclation might be?

No.

All right.
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I'd have to locok at a case—by—casé basis.

And 1'd liké for you to look, sir, at EPA's Exhibit
31. That's the photograph of . |

T don't have that in front of me.

THE COURT: Do you have that, Mr. Cernero?
THE WITNESS: Not -- not in front of me. I --

I'm =- I know it's --

THE CCOURT: I have got -- you can use my copy.
(An off—the—regord conversation was held, after
which the following continued:)

(By Mr.JKellogg:). Do you have Government'Exhibit 31,
sir?

Yes, I.do.

And if I recall your testimony yesterday, you_thought-
there might be some dribble shown in that photograph.that
could be gasoline, but you weren't sure. Do‘ydu recall
that?

Yes.

And it also locks to me like there's some sort of a
ﬁowder.or sand of floor.sweep or-something scattered
around on the concrete. | |

Yes.l

And do you know what that material was?

It'was probably powder for sticking the -- or -

sometimes they use that to -- to get a good measurement on
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the stick.

Okay. Or it could have been used as.something to
clean up the dribblesg?

It could be.

Okay. Thank you.

I don't think it would, because it's not even on

the -- where the -- the sociled area is, though. I mean I
don't -- I don't that's -- I don't know what it is,
really. I --

Yeah.

I wouldn't --

Thatlsoiled area, though, is concrete, is i; not?

Yes.

That's not native soil, it's concrete.

No. I mean -- I'm sorxry, the -- the -- locks like
diesel or gasoline that's sitting on the concrete. The
poﬁder is not.on top of that. That -- I would assume if
they are using that as an absorbent, that's -- that would
be on top of that.

I'm mistaken it was on top? Thank you, that's all i
have of that exhibkit.

Ckay.

Now, I'd like to move on ﬁo Count 12, sgir.

All right.

This is Goodwin's. Failed to take daily stick
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readings for three tanks, if I remehber it‘correctly.

Correct.

And if you would, turn to EPA Exhibit 30; that's the
Corpération Commission regulations.

All right.

Let's lock at page 31.

Okay.

And the regulation is 3-5.1.

Okay.

Tank tightness -- or "General Release Detection
Methods and Devices."

And then on the following page, 32, do you see
Regulation 3-5.2, ﬁTénk System Tightness Testing‘with
Inventory éontrol.“

Yeé.

Okay. And these would be the applicable rules
charged in the Complaint; is that right?

i‘m not really sure. On this one, we said according
to -- it was 25-2-53.

Fifty-three?

One. Oh, I‘m,éorry, wait. You're in -- I'm'sorry,
what count —-‘did you say it was 127

We're in Count 12, Goodwin's.

Count 12 has to do with cathodic protection. Is that

not -- did I get the wrong one?
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Failed to -- failed to take daily stick readings.
Let's see, your penalty would be on EPA Exhibit 19,
page 11. |
I may have the -- I may have the-wfong Complaint.
Because I have got one ﬁhat says "draft" on here.  That's
the wrong one.
MS. BEAvEﬁ: Can.I --
MR. KELLOGG: Certainly.
MS. BEAVER: Your Honor, could I give'him a copy
of the Complaint?
THE COURT: Yes.
' THE WITNESS: This is --
THE COURT: And do you have another copy? Last
night you had given me a copy of those --
MS. BEAVER: The OCC regs?
THE COURT: -- the night before.  The 0OCC rules,
T would like a copy.
MS. BEAVER: Of the OCC rules?
THE COURT: Yes.
MS. BEAVER: Ckay.
THE chRT; The ones that you said were
applicable.
MS. BEAVER: Right. They are in our Exhibit
Number 30.

THE COURT: Oh.
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MS. BEAVER: That we provided.
THE COURT: ' Qkay.
MS. BEAVER: Government's Exhibit 30.
THE COURT: Okay.
MS. BEAVER: Right.
THE COURT: Proceed.
MS. BEA&ER: But Mf. Cernero doesn't have
that -- those two folders.
THE WITNESS; Okéy. This one says "draft."
That's the wrong ﬁne.
Okay. I'm sorry. VYou're right. That's --
(By Mr. Kelloég:) Okay..
-- 25-3 -- or 25-3-5.1, vyeah.
5,17 ‘
Yes.
All right. And turn, if you would, sir, to page 71
in Appendix S.
All right.

And is that rule cited there on page 717?

Yes, it is. "Fallure to provide adequate release" --
or -- ng,.I'm sorry. No, no, no.

Yes.

That's it, yeah; "Failure to provide adequate
‘release detection for storage tank.systems." It says,

"first offense, $500. Second offense" --




10

11

12

13

14

15

le

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

262

0

e

-

= o

0

&0 L]

o

No. The first ofﬁense is how much, sir?

Oh, I'm sorry. It's $250.

All right. Thank ydu.

The second offense, 500; the third’offense, 1,000.

All right. And just out of curiosity, do you know
which offense this is?

Well, for this particular count, it would probably be
the first offense.

The first offense? Thank you.

And how if you would ldék to your Exhibit 19, page
11. That's your calculation of the penalty.

Okay. . What's in the order, so -- ockay. (Sic.)

And EPA -- or OCC's charge was 250. 2And how much was

.ybur penalty, sir?

Well, our pénalty was for 13,500. Thatrwas for all
three tanks, I believe. |

Okay. Thank you.

Uh-huh;(

And did:Qou count this for one year and one day?

Let's gee. I counted1it for one year; for count 12
was one year.

Not one year and one day?

Well, it was actualiy one year, one-day.‘ But it does
show.365 here. The multiplier indicates it was 366.

Yeah.
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Okay .
%o the one year and one day adds a little bit moxre to
the multipliér, right?
Uh-huh..
Okay. Now, I take it you do not have one of these
black'notebooks, gir?
No.
This Respondent's exhibits?
No, I don't.
MR.. KELLOGé: Thié ig for the witness. May L
approach?
THE COURT: Yes.
MR. KELLOGG: I'm haﬁding the witness the black
notebook of Respondent's exhibits; Your Honor.
THE WITNESS: Okay.
(By Mr. Kellogg:) I'd like for you to turn to
Respondent's Exhibit 29, sir.
Okay. All right.
And that is an inspection by the Corporation
Commission done on February 27th of 2004, right?
Yes.
And does that indicate whether this facility passed
for this particular violation?
Yeah, it shows that there's no violations.

Showg no vielation.
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Uh-huh.

And February 27 is less than a year from the time of
your inspection; isn'tlthat correct?

Yes.

All right.

But A lot can happen in a year.

COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry?
THE WITNESS: I said a lot can happen in a year.

(By Mr. Keilogg:) Of course. But your penalty was -
for one year and one day, right?

Correct.

And this algo is a major-major?

Yes. |

What if someoﬁe optéd not.to take a stick reading one
night? -Say there were heavy thunderstorms and tornadoes
in the air. Would it be a violation to not get the stick
test done that day? .

It would be a violation, but that WOuld prdbably be
considered in the penalty. It would -- it would be a |
violation for failure to stick a tank every day that they
are in operation, according to the regulations.

So no day could be missed? |

If.you are sayihg strictly, technically, is it a
violation? Yes, it is a violatiom. |

Well, look if you would, gir, to Respondent's
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Exhibit 2, and I want you to turn to Attachment Number 4,

which is towards the end. And tha; would be a document
entitled -- from the EPA -- "Doing Inventory Control Right
for Underground Storage Tanks." Can you find that
exhibit, Sir?.

You said Attachment 4 and 2? Okay.

Attachment 4 to Exhibit 2. Not.all of Exhibit 2 has
been stipulated to, but Attachment 4 has.

| Okay. What page on that "Doing InVentory" --

I'm sorry, the pages aren't numbered, but if you go

towards the back of that, you'll see ihventory control --

"Deing Inventory Control Right."

Yes, I've -- I've got that -- that pamphlet.
~ Ah.
Okay. "Deoing Inventory Right.'" Right, I've got

that.
Thank you. And are you familiar with this --
Yeah.
-+ document, sir?
Yes, T am.
All right. And that's EPA's information that they
give to the public on how to do inventory‘control.
Right.
Is that correct?‘

That's correct.
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If you would, sir, lock at the -- at that document,
look at the top of page 6.

Okay.

The very firsf line. Would you read that sentence, -
please.

Says, "you must measure thé tank every day.that fuel
is added or rémoved.“

'All right.

."You may take measurements using a stick gauge or a
mechanical or electronic tank level monitor."

So a store wouldn't necessarily have to take a stick
reading 365 déys a year -- | |

No. .

-- if they didn't add fuel or sell fuel.

Right. It's every day -- and -- every day that you
are in operation, which means yoﬁ either take fuel out or
put fuel in.

Well -—

If you are closed on weekends; no, you do not have to
take stick readings.

If‘a‘gas station is‘combined with a grocery store and
no gasoline is sold but groceries are sold, do they have
to take a stick reading?

| No. Only if they sell product of fuel.

Thank you. Now, I would like you to look back to the
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Oklahoma's Corporatioﬁ Commission regulations; that's EPA
Exhibit.30. Page 31, if you would, sif.

Okay. |

Yesterday, you téstified about that SIR method of
release detection. You mentioned the term SIR.

I don't remember, but go ahead.

Are you familiar wiﬁh SIR?

Ch, vyes. -Yes. Yes.

Tell me what that is, please.

It ——‘it stands for -- SIR stands for Statistical
Inventory Reconciliation System.

All right. |

Or SIR. There's no “system“ at the end; I'm sorry.
It's Statistical Invento:y Reconciliation.

Okay. And that's an approved method of release

detection, is it not?

Depending on who the manufacture -- who the supplier
is. Not all -- I mean I'm just saying you have to lcok to
see who the -- who the supplier is to make the

determiﬁation whether it meets thé criteria. But-
generally speaking, yes, it's an approved method.

Okay. And on page 31 of the rules is the Corporation
Qommissién's criteria for general release detection method
devices, correct? | |

Yes.
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And can you tell me where SIR is 1iéted in there,
air?

I don't knbw'—— I don't -- I don't know if they have
SIR listed ih their rules; bf course, EPA doesn't elther.

It's not even listed in the EPA rules?

Nb, but it's under "other methods." EPA has a
criteria for other methods. In their infinite wisdom,
they decided that maybe sometime in the future; theré may
be methods thét ére not listed, so they came up with a
criteria that said if you meet a .2-gallon-per-hour
release and yQﬁ can meet the 95 percent probably --
probability of a -- of a -- of a leak with only five
percent probability of false alarﬁ, then you can --
you're -- that method can be approved, as long as it's
just as protective of the -~ of the environment as the
other methods.

Ckay. Very good. So the regulated community, a
store owner or operator, could not look to the regulations
and discover ﬁhe criteria for an SIR?

No, not in EPA's rules. And abparently at -- I
didn't lock at this thoroughly, but I don't see --

It's not in there;

It's not in there?

No.

Okay.
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‘Now, let me ask you, in -- at ﬁhe top of page 32 is
"Tank System Tightness Testing with Inventory Control."
Do you see that,‘sir?

Yes.
-And that is somewhat gimilar to SIR, isnft it, at

least as far as the data that's collected?

SIR -~ the data that you collect for SIR and the data

that you collect for inventory control is basically the

same.

Basically the same? The store operator does the same

work.

Correct.

All right. Except it doesn't have to do with SIR,
the annual tank tightness test, right?

Yes, SIR does not require the tightness test to be
conducted.

Okay;

Because it's -- it's being analyzed by éxperts and
also by cpmputerizétion that locks at trends.

Okay. By the way, do you have to be nurse -- NACE
certified to take a stick reading?

No. That has nothing to do with corrosion.

A1l right.

No.,

And -- and -- and so anybody can take a stick test?
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Yeah, if they know how to read to an eighth of an
inch they can, ves. |

Well, do you test people to see if they know how to
read it? |

I don't test them. But I mean you have to have
enough -- enough brain power to be able to read a stick,
ydu're right. |

Very good.

That's all you have to do.

Thank you.

There's no qualifications.

.. Qkay. We are -- we are near the end. I would like
to move on to Count 14. This would be Monroe's at
Eufaula. If I remember right, this was failed to do
monthly release detection on one temporafy closed tank.,

Yes 

EPA Exhibit 30, the Oklahoma Corporation Commission -
regulations -- in fact, to help speed this up, turn to
bage 47, please.

| Okay. |

And woﬁld Rule 25-3-62(b} --

All right.

-- be_the_proper violation that was charged here?

I think I.said -- quoted 63 -- 25—3r62(a)(2); That's

what I put in the Complaint.




- 10
11
12
13
14

15

16

17

18

.19
20
21
22
23
24

25

271

e

=0

0

(A) (2)72

(A) (2)7

Very good. That's 3-62, right?

And now, turn to page.72 in Appendix S. And in Ehe
top third of the page, you see 3-63 listed there, correct?
Or is it 3-627

It's 62 and 63.

Okay.r And the OCC penalty is how much?

$250.

And lock to your Exhibit 19, page 12.

This one is 14. Okay.

Your penalty, sir, was how much?

Of course I fail to see the relevancy here, but it's
$1,500.

All right. And weren't there four tanks at Monroe's?

Yes, there was four tanks at Monroe.

- And how many of those had more than‘an inch of
product?

Just one.

Just one? And this was also a major—major, right?

Yes.

All fight. Thank you. .

Count 15, if you would, sir,.still Monroe's. Failed

to operate the CP system for that one tank that's not

- guite empty.
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No, no. It wasn't for just one tank.
Okay.

‘It's for.all four ﬁanks.

rAll four tanks?

Yes.

Okay. But only one héd product in it?

- Yes, but that had -- that had nothing to do with

‘maintaining corrosion protection.

Ckay.

You must maintain corrosion protection for tanks in
temporary closure, because the assumption 1is that sometime
in the future, fou may put product in it, and_ybu don't
Want any of the -- even though the tanks may be completely
dry, you still want corrosion protection.

Of course.

Ckay.

But if those tanks were actually removed in the
futﬁre, then that possibility wouldn't arise, would it?

Tﬁat‘s true, but the owner is the.one that made the
determination that they were-going to temporarily ciose
those tanks.

Okay. So this rule -- this is -- back to Exhibit 30
again,. I guess,:page 47.
Okay.

Is that the correct -- we're still in a temporary
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removal from service. This would be the paragraph (b}, I
guess.

Okay.

YOu_have to do release detection? No, corrosion
protection.

Yes. You still may have to -- you still have to
maintain corrosion protection for tanks --

That's (a) (1)2

No, I gbt -- lost my place. You.said in 25-3-62; is
that the one? |

(A) (1) ..

{A) (1} . "Continue to operate and maintain corrosion
protection as requirea by this chaptei." |

Yes, you must maintain your corrosion protection for
all tanks in temporary closure whether they have product
in them or don't have product in them.

Very good.

Okay.

Of course, if the tank is empty, there's not going to

be a leak, unless the prodﬁct is someday put back in

there, cofrecf?

That's corredt.

All right. Now, turn back to Appendix 8, the game
page, 72.

Okay.
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And the Oklahoma Corporation Commission penalty for
violation, sir, was how much? That would be -
$500.

$500€

Yes.

and your Exhibit 19; that's page 13..

Okay . | |

Your penalty, sir, was how ﬁuch?

That waSVCount 15, you said?.

Count 15.

‘It's $16,500.

By the way, how many CP systems were there installed

at Monroe's?

There was one system.
One system? Now --

That protects all four tanks. But there has to be

protection on all four tanks.

" Oh, I understand. -

It's an. impressed current, yeah.
But there's only one system?
Well, yeah, one system.

Thahk you. And the last count, 16, is really about

the same. I mean we are dealing with roughly the same

regulation, I think.

Count 16 is failed to test the CP system every'thrée
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years.
Well, the first six --
Different rule.

It's testing the cathodic protection within six

~months after installation, then every three vyears

thereafter.

Okay. 2nd the OCC penalty for that, do you find that
on the-chart?

Let me see here. I'm not really sure where that's
located on -- I guess that's the same one, is that.what
you are saying? It's 60 -- 25-3-627

Seems like it to me.

Okay.

But I'm not sure, either.

Okay.

But in any event, the -- even that paragraph is $500.

Let's look to your penalty. That would be'page i4 of
your Exhibit 19.

Qkay. For Count 167

Count 16. |

It was 18,347.

And 11 cents.

And 11 cents, right.

Isn't the real violation here simﬁly that they failed

to pull the tank several years ago?
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"That's not the real violation?

That's not the.violétion. We don't require them to
pull the tanks if they keep it in temporary closure.

"That's, in effect, what happened. If they would have
pulled the tanks several years'ago, this wouldn't be a
count.

That's right.

Okay. ©Now, I apologize, I would like to briefly go

back to Count 4. That's the Citgo Quik Mart just up the

road here in McAlester. And the Count 4 was, again, the
monthly release detectioﬁ monitoring. four EPA Exhibit
Number 19, page 6.

Count 4? Okay. "Failure to Conduct Monthly Release
Detection Monitoring for Tanks." Okay.

211 right. Are you looking at page 6 of your

exhibit?
‘Well, I'm -- I'm looking at the Complaint.
Okay. -
And I don't know -- it's not page 6; it's page 9 in

mine, but --

I -- I'd like you to look at your determination of
penalty, and that's EPA Exhibit 19.
Okay. Look at the calculations?

I'm sorry.
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1 | MS. BEAVER: Your Honér, again, Mr. Cernero does
2 not have the binder that you gﬁys‘have, that you and
3 the Respondent have.
4 ' MR. KELLOGG: Ah, I ém_so sorry.
5 THE WITNESS: Uh-huh.
6 ' . MR. KELLOGG: I dom't --
7 | | MS! BEAVER: He has thé Complaint.
8 THE WITNESS:' I'm just actually looking at the
9 Complaint itself, that's all. It's the same thing,
”10 | ‘but I'm just looking at different numberé.
11 , MR. KELLOGG: Your Honor, may I hand him my
12 ' copy? | |
13 | | THE COURT: Yes.
14 Q (By Mr. Kellogg:) This is Government Trial Exhibits,
15 . ' Exhibits Numbers 14 to 30. |
16 A Okay.
17 Q and I have opened it to page 6 --
18 A Ckay.
19 Q -- of Government-Exhibit 19.
20 A All right. O©Oh, I'm sorry. Okay.
21 Q And YOuPre‘familiar with that, are you not?
22 A Yes.
23 Q That was your penalty calculations.
24 A Yeé. Yes, 1t was.
25 10Q Lock at the top-paragraph. I have highlighted
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something in yellow there about a capital expenditure of

$5,000 to install ATG. Do you see that?

Yes.
and tell -- can you tell the Court what an ATG is?
ATG is -- well, it stands for Automatic Tank Gauging.

It is a method of release detection that's allowable under

.our rules.

Okay.

And under OCC's. It essentialiy has probes that are
ingide a ténk that takes level readings, tests the tanks,
and then it electronically translates that information to
a computer that's usually inside the building.

211 right. And is that the only method that's
approvable? |

No, there are other methods.

But you're -- you calculated your penalty on a
$5,000 qapital inﬁestment cost, correét?

Correct, for the -- for the economic component, yes.

"All right. Does SIR have a capital investment cost?

No, it doesn't, but it does have --

Thank you. Now, if there's no capital expense,
how -- vyour éenalty calculation is in error, is it not?

I'm not saying it's in error. I had to make certain
assumptions to come ﬁp with an economic benefit.

All right.
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If they use monitoring wells, there would have been a

capital expenditure. SIR, you're correct, there is no

capital expenditure, but there is a contract expense that

you normally pay for a contractor to take that information

that you have. Whether it's $5,000, $3,000, you are

right, I am -- I am taking information and trying to
calculate an economic benefit.

Very good. Thank you. By the way, this Quik Mart,
if -- if you remember correctly, wasn't there an issue
about whether it wae upgraded in 1998, the tanks?

Irthink the issue on -- on Quik Mart was that those
tanks.were instalied in 1990,

All‘right.

I forget what month it was, but it was installed in
1990. Therefoxe, those tanks'are considered to be new
tanks, which require all spill overfill prevention,
cathodic protectien, and of course, leak detection is
reqﬁifed_when it goes in the ground.

Therefore, that tank cannot be, quote, upgraded as a
tank that was installed on of prior to December 22nd,
1988. That -- tanks that were installed on or prior to
December 22nd, '88, arelconsidered existing tanks.

Existing tanks are fhe only ones that have to be
upgraded. If they ddn‘f have the spill and overfill and

corrosion protection that's required -- that was required
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as of December 22nd, 1998 -- in other words, all existing

tanks, when the rules came out, were given 10 years to
upgrade to a certain point. If they were not upgraded in
1998, then they either had - they had to be removed.

But there was a ruling_ih our =-- when the rules came
out, they also addressed ﬁew tanks, and they said
anything -- any tank that's installed after this rule
comes out, you must ﬁave all the bells and whistles on
this tank when it goes in, and it's considered a new tank.

If a tank in 1990 was installed that aid not have
corrogion protection, it was a definite violation.
Basically, if you're -- you can't put a bare steel tank in
the groﬁnd after -- actually, after December 20 -- or |
after May, I think, of 1986, because there was an interim
rule that came out before the rules were even_éctually
adopted that said no more bare steel tanks in the ground.

But to make a long story short, if a tank was
installed in 1990, it had to be -- it had to meet all the
New Tank Standards.

All'right. Do you know if this tank at -- the tanks
at the Quik Mart have corrosion protection installed?

My understanding, they did. |

And that was in the form of sacrificial anodes,
correct? |

I really don't have that information in front of me.
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Well --

Can you find it?

Yes, I think I can. Okay. According to my
information I.received from the OCC, those tanks were
installed in 19 -- October 1lst of 1990.

They were STIP-3 tanks, which mean -- stands for
Steel Tank Institute Protected three ways. Essentially,
those tanks were the approved steel tanks that had
factory-installédrcathodic protectidn.when they went in
the ground.

All right.

Now, I understand it also now has a CP system on it.

And that CP sgsystem --
An impressed current, right.

-- ig impressed current, right?

Yes.

And that impressed Current.isn‘t - disn't required,
is it?

No, it's ndt required, if your -- 1f your tanks afe

up to standard. If the STIP tanks are functioning
properly, then you don't have to.do anything.

All right. Now, let's look at the -- the EPA’'s
‘rules. This is Exhibit 30. I'm sorry, the Corporation
Cﬁmmiésion rules.

Qkay.
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That's-that saﬁe notebook you have behind you. All
right. Look to the definitions, 1f you would, sir.

Okay.‘

And tell me if you sée anything that defines what a
modification or an upgrade is. |

I would assume they don't have anything in their
rules, because 0OCC took out all the upgradé requirements
with their new - with their later régulations.

Apparently, they assumed that everybody is upgraded
and thefe's no longer a need to have that in their
regulations, so they tock ocut all the information about
upgrading in thé rules and regulations.'.

" Okay.

As of what date, I'm really not sure. But this one
does not have the upgraded rules and regulations.

Ckay. Have you, yourself, ever been unclear about
the difference between a modification and an upgrade?

Not -~ well, I have rarely come across that. I mean
in this particular case, it's clearly not an up -- it's
not‘an upgrade, it's a repair. |

Well, you rehember speéking with my co-counsel and
these people in‘Dallas one day many months ago; do you
not?

MS. DIXON: Objection, Your Honor. He's going

into settlement discussicns.
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THE COURT: Well, all -- all discussions and
offers at -- all discussions at gettlement
conferences 6r.so on aren'£ necessarily
objectionable; it's only specific ones. 2and so I'1l1l
overrule the objection.

You may proceed, Mr. Kellogg.

"MR. KELLOGG: Thank yéu, Your Honor. And I will
not ask about énything specific as to settlement.

(By Mf. Kellogg:) Do you recall mentioning that --
that there was some confusion about the differeﬁce between
an upgrade gnd a -- |

I don't recall that, but I mean looking at the ;—

Is it pogsible it.happened and you just.forgot?

Possible.

All right.

But the evidence here is that thét is_not an upgraded
tank, because it has -- if it was, then it was in
violation when the tank went in the ground.

From your perspective?

Well --

It's ~--

It is -~ it is not unusual for tanks, STiP—3‘tanks
that were instélled early '88, or aftexr '88, '90, have to
be upgraded -- you say upgraded; but it's not upgraded;

it's actually repaired to make sure that they have enough
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current to‘protéct them from corrosion.

But if you install a CP system on a taﬁk that dbesn't
regquire it, that's not a repair, is it? |

Well, what_you are saying here, the STIP-3 tanks,
when they went in the ground, should have been protective
of corrosion.

If the STIP-3 tank has failed to meet the minimum
requirements for corrosion protectibn, there is no reéson
why -- we Qould require that you -- that you -- that'yﬁu
either add anodes or go through an impressed current.

This happens many times where the STIP-3 tanks no

‘longer produce enough current to show that it's meeting

corrosion protection, which is why we regquire our test

every three years of all -- of all corrosion protection
systems. |
This tank is not an upgraded tank; it is a tank that
was installed under New Tank Standafds. Later on; the
corrosion protection system failéd, and.then there was a

system added to supplement that corrosion protection

‘system.

Granted --

That is my opinion, and for whatevér it's worth.
Your opinion --

Uh-huh.

~- that's a good one, and I appreciate your
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explanatioﬁ.

Okay.
You can imagihe, though, that this would be confusing

to some members of the regulated community, like a store

operator.
It - it's possible,iyeah. I mean that is --
All right.
-- I assume that they would -- they may think it's an

ﬁpgrade. Actually, it's a repair.
My last question for you is have you ever, yourself,
lost or misplaced séme document or record that you needed?
Of course. |
MR. KELLOGG: All right. Your Honor,
Mr. Shipley has some more guestions about the
policies involved here today. That's alllthat I have
about the technical aspects. Thank you.
THE‘COURT: Okay. We'll take a bxief recess,
five minutes.
THE WITﬁEss: Okayl
* ok ok ok ok k
(A break was taken, after which the following
continued:) |
THE COURT: The hearing will be.in order.

And you may proceed, Mr. Shipley.
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CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. SHIPLEY:

Good morning, Mr. Cernéro.

Good morning.

How -are you? Thé topic of EPA coming in to Oklahoma
for this inspection, I believe, was touched updn by

Mr. Pashia. And you were here for his testimony, were you

not?

Yes.
All right. What I remember, and correct me if I'm
wrong, 1s that Mr. Pashia indicated that during fiscal

year '05, that the visit by you in November of the

calendar year '04 was theronly enforcement visit to the

state of Oklahoma by EPA?

I didn't -- I wasn't there for the '04 --
All right.
-- inspection, that was -- only Greg was there. T
- was not -- I did not become inveolved with this case until
February. | |

I'm sorry.

To do thg inspections.
Forgive me.

Okay.

The -- during -- during the period of January '05
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through the end of fiscal year '05, which would have ended
Sepfember 30 --

Right.

-- '05, were there any other visits by EPA for
enforcemeﬁt needs for UST program; other than your visit
to RAM? |

-I don't -- I don't have the records in front of me.
Are you saying i1s that the only inspections I have déne?

No, no.

Qkay.

I'm sorry. I'm askiné about UST enforcement by EPA
Region 6 in Oklahoma. From January 1 of '05, to
September 30, 'OS, were there any other facilities
inspected, other than those owned by RAM?

I -- I have not -- I have. not personally'done any --
any other enforcemént in Oklahoma in that year, other than

RAM, because I'm not involved in Oklahoma.

Now, whether Greg -- Mr. Greg Pashia has, I -- I
really don't know. I -- I'd have to go back and look at
our records and find out what inspect -- I know he was

doing inspections in Oklahoma, but I was not. So I don't
have an answer for you, really.

Is it fair to say that you are not aware of any other
instances where EPA.enforcement personnel came into

Oklahoma during that period of January 1, '05, to
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September 30, '05 --

No, I'm saying --

-~ other than the RAM?

"No, I'm saying I don't -- I haven't. But I don't
know if Greg has done compliance inspections with field
citations.

I know he has not doﬁe an order, but he has not --
I'm not sure whether he's done field citations or whether
he's done inspections.

I know he has done inspections on tribal lands and
that type of thing, but I'm not really éure about what
his -- how many inspections he{s done from, you said,
Jahuary of '05 to September 30th, '05. |

I am sure he has done inspections, I just can't say
for sure. I mean I can't say if -- what they were.

All right. Your -- the‘answer to my question of are
you aware of any other enforcement actions by EPA Region 6
in Oklahoma during that time period is no, correct?

No, I don't know, because T don't know what Greg's
done.

All right.

Okay.

That's all I needed to get --

Yeah.

-- clear. Thank you.
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If you would,.turn to -- in the book that you have

before you that has the Respondent's exhibits, turn,

please, to Respondentfs Exhibit 52, which is the

1

Memoranaum of Agreement
| Okay.

-- for Undergrgund Storage Tanks between the State of
Cklahoma énd EPA Region 6.

Okay. I got it.

Thank you, sir. All righty. The ——‘before we walked
through this on direct, you testified -- I'll wait till
this truck passes.

on direct, you testified that you were familiar
beéausé you've had personél experience with much higher
fines than that which has been levied against . RAM.

And my notes show that you said that you had pérsonal
involvement with oﬁe casé where the fine -- and I gather
it had to do with UST -- was as high as $375,000; is that
correct?

That was the settle amount -- settle -- settled
amount, yes. |

Ckay. But that was not in Okléhoma, was 1it?

Some of the facilities were in Texas. I.belieVe some
of them were in Arkansas. I don't believe any of them was
in Oklahoma.

All right. Axe you aware of any -- any fine, under
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the UST program in the state of Oklahoma, during the

_fiséal year 2001, 2002, 2003,'2004,'or 2005, that exceeds

$10,000?

The only one I could remember would be Tinke; Air
Force Base, but I;m not sure if.that was before 2001 or
after 2001. And it was -- I think it was settled for
50 -- 50 -- 851,000, I believe. 

Right. And the records, I believe; show that that
Waé filed in 1998.

Qkay. It was before 2001,

So the answer to my question -- are you aware any
fine under the UST program in the state of Oklahoma during
fiscal years 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004, or 2005 which_exéeed
$10,000 -- is no?

No. That's correct.

All right. There is this agreement between EPA
Region 6 and tﬁe State of Cklahoma, which we just turned
to here, Respondent's Exhibit 52. Are you generally
familiar with this document?

Generally speaking. It's é Memorandum of Agreement
betWeén EPA and the state. It's part of the stafe program
authorization-process that has to be doné go that we can
delegate the program to the staté.

And the date on this document, on the last page,

is -- one gignature is in March, the other in early
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April 1992, between Region 6 and the State of Oklahoma,
Oklahoma, Oklahoma Corporation Commisgsion, correct?

Yes. I believe, though, this has been recently

revised and updated. I don't want to say that for sure,

but I think Greg was working on some kind of a new -- an
updated, revised MOA with OCC., But that's not -- that's
not official, as far as_I know.

Is it your belief that there is a modification of
this documént, 52, that has been agreed to and signed --

No.

-- between the state --

No. As I say, it's not official yet.

Okay. Thank vyou.

It's not been égreed to, as far as I know.

So up to this moment, the document that we have as
Respondent's 52 is the operative document describing the
relationship between EPA Region é and the Oklahoma
Corporation Commission for Underground Stdrage Taﬁks?

Yes. | |

Thank you, sir. All right. In this document, on the

secohd'page, the first little paragraph, it says, "the

parties shall review this MOA" -- Memorandum of
Agreement --
You said -- I'm -- excuse me. Let me get -- make

sure. You said the second page?

¢
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Yeg, sir.

Ali right. And which paragfaph?

.The first full paragraph --

Ckay.

-- beginning --

Okay. Sorry.

-~ "thg parties shall review this MOA jointly at
least once a year.;l

Yes.

Are you aware of whether or not the parties have done
that since 1992 on an annual basis?

I would assume they have, because we do an
end-of-year review with our states in which we do discuss
proposed changes to the‘MOA.

I knﬁw in'Arkansés,_which I work, we have reviewed --
reviewed them, looked at them. It doesn't say we have to
change ﬁhem every year, it just says we have to at least
jointly lock at it and decide whether we want to modify it
or not.

And in fact, as an exampleh in Arkansas, we did

modify it several years ago, because there were some

- changes in the names and some minor modifications we had

to make. And we did both jointly decided to change it.
Not significantly, but we did change it.

All right. Thank you, sir. The -- the essence of
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this document, as I understand,-is that this dccument, in
the spring of 1992, delegated the primary responsibility
for enforcement of the UST program from the EPA to the

Oklahoma Corporation Commission; is that your

~understanding?

Yeah. Essentiall?, generally speaking, 1t gave the
program to the state to run it as an everyday event.' EPA
would -- or the state would run the program in lieu of
EPA, and that we would adopt their rules and regulations
into our federal fegister go that there would be,
basically, one rule that the reguiated community ﬁad to
follow, which is, really, the purpose of the Memorandum of
Agreementl |

So that there would be one set of regulations?

Correct.

But that seems to be inconsistent with what we have
been gding through this morning and a bunch of yesterdéy
aftérnooﬁ, isn't it?

Well, one thing we do have to ensure is that the

state is no less stringent than EPA. If there are any --

if there are any supposedly gaps, that we would have to
ensure that the state met their minimum standards.
Is there any doubt in your mind, yours personally or

the EPA Region 6, as far as you know, that Oklahoma

Corporation Commission doesn't meet that standard that you
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just described?

I really can't answer that, because I'm not that
familiar with their entire program.

Let me put it this way: To your knowledge, has the
EPA Regiqn 6 ever advised the Oklahoma Corporation
Coﬁmission that their UST program enforcement is being
operated at a substandard 1evél?

Not to my knowledge, no.

All righﬁ. If we look at the policy statement, which
is on the second page in the first péragraph, third line,
it says, "the State will assume primary responsibility for
implementing the Subtitle 1 Underground Storage Tank
Program, within its boundaries."

I'm -- I'm trying to look at the paragraph. Is it
the same paragraph that you were just talkiﬁg about?

I'm sorry. On the Secénd page --

Okay;

-- below Roman Numeral é.

Ckay.

"Policy Statement." Three lines into that, it says,
"Upon éward of final éppréval by EPA, the State will
assume primary responsibility for implementing'ther
Subtitle 1 Undergfound Storage Tank Program Qithin its
boundaries. "

And there further in the document, EPA sets out three
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specific points where the Oklahoma Corporation

" Commission's program wasn't up to the approbriate

standards.

My question is to you, as far as you know, those
point -- those points of substandard program degcription,
as spelled out in the spring of 1992, were subsequently

brought up to standard, and EPA has now passed on the full

primary responsibility as this program -- as this poliecy
has taken it -- sets out, correct?
. Yes.

All'righty. As that paragraph goes on to say, it
says, "EPA retains its responsibility to ensure full and
faithful execution of the requiremenﬁs of Subtitle 1 of
RCRA, including direct implementation_iﬁ the event the
State is unable to act."

To your knowledge, has the State of Oklahomé, by its
Corporation Commission; ever been found by EPA to be
unable to act, as this language spells.out?

Not to my knowledge.

All righty. So there is no -- to your knowledge, no
event where direct'imélementation of the UST program by
EPA in Okléhoma would be apﬁropriaté, correct?

Correct.

All righty. We go to the next page, paragraph --

page 3. And the first full paragraph begins, "EPA assumes
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a management role.upon.granting final approval to the
State." Do you see that, sir?

Yes. Yes, I do.

At‘—é the last sentence in that paragraph tells us’
how EPA will accomplish its management role. Itlsays,
"Management will be accomplished by EPA thréugh written
reporting requirements, compliance and enforcement
overview, and annual review of the State's p:ogram."

‘To your'knowledge; is that an accurate statement of
the responéibilitiés of the EPA Regioﬁ é and Oklahoma with

regard to the UST program?

Yes.
All righty.
THE COURT: Excuse me, Mister --
Mr. Swisher (sic). Most of tﬁese Mgmorandums of

Understanding or Memorandums of Agreement have
lénguage in them at some point that says these do not
graﬁt any rights -- rights to third parties,
something to that effect. Is there such language in
this MOA?

MR. SHIPLEY: No, sir. And the point here,
Judge, is that EPA's role in the implementation of
the UST program is specificaliy delineated in this
document .

And what we hope to be able to demonstrate by
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the testimony and the documents here, is that this is
an extraordinary action, and we believe we know the
reason why this extraordinary action has been taken.

When we can show that to you, I believe that you
will see why, for the first time in five years, there
is a fine levied of $278,000, 27.8 tiﬁes higher than
any othér fine in the state on this program. This is
a unique action. And --

MS. DIXON: But --

MR. SHIPLEY: -- we need to have this Court
understand, and I believe it will come oﬁt in ﬁis
testimony, as to why EPA has done what they have done
here, sir.

MS. DIXON: Your Honor, if I could just respond.
He misquoted the penalty.

THE COURT: Yes, you may.

MS. DIXON: The peﬁalty is actually 179, but
with regards to the Memorandum of Understanding,
thére is broad language in here that makes sure that
HEPA always has the right to take an enforcement
action in the event that we deem it neceésary.

Specifically on page 1 of the-Memorandum of
Agreement, it states, "nothing in this MOA shall be
construed to contravene any pfovision of 4OVCFR Parts

280 and 281."
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‘Additionally, on page 9: "Nothing in this MOA
shall restrict EPA's right torinspect any Underground
Storage Tank facility or bring enforcement action
against any person believed to be iﬁ violation of the
approved State Underground Storage Tank Program.”

In regards to coungel's statement that he kﬁows
why EPA took the enforcement action against the
rRespondent,rYoux Honor, I mean he -- he will
enlighten me as well as everyone else in here,
because it is my understanding we simply did an
ingpection. 2And if there were no violations, Your
Honor,.we would have walked away.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. Well, I'11 allow
you to proéeed,_Mr. Swisher (sic), but as again,
expedite it.

MR. SHIPLEY: I will -- I will speed this up,
Your Honor, and edit some of the -- the testimony and
some of the'language here, and T appreciate your
allowing me to go forward.

(By Mr. Shipley:) The ——.part 6f the data -- pardon
me. Part of the terms of this agreement indicate that the
state agrees to allow EPA access to all its files and
other information whenever requesﬁed by EPA Region 6.

And it is my understanding of your testimony that you

did not lock at the inspection and compliance reports that
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OCC had done on RAM prior to your ehforcement inspection
in Fébruary of '05; is that correct?

That's correct. There was no -- there was no need
for me to lock at the state's inspection report. This was
strictly an independent inspection that we conducted,
along with our state counterpart.

What had gone on previously really was not part of
the decision in doing ﬁhese -- I mean as far as my
inspection was concerned, i wanted to do a complete,
independent inspection of these facilities to see if there
was violations, and’fhere were. And that's the reason why
we're here.

You say that this is a ﬁnique gituation for Oklahoma;
however, in the state of Arkansas, we have done numerous
enforcement actions, and it's a delegated state. We have
aone several in Texas.. Actually, I thiﬁk it's just
Oklahoma has just been lucky that we haven't done as many
complaints in the state of Oklahoma.

There's another answer for that, and that would be
that Oklahoma is running a fine program and doesn't
require your assistance. Would that be a possible answer
to the situation you just described?

I will say thisg, that Oklahoma is one of the few
states that inspects their facilities.at least once a

year. And the reason for that is because the Oklahoma
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Corporation Commission also inspects the metering of all
gasoline pumps.

So it's a very good program, because not only is

‘the -- inspected at -- looks at the metering to make sure

it's accurate, they also do éompliance inspection of the
Underground Storage Tanks (sic).

It -- it gives us a little better feeling if an
inspector is outrthere each year, but it has no relevancy

to the fact that we haven't done anything in five vyears.

It wasn't -- it just happened to be we haven't done
as much action in -- in Oklahoma as we did in Arkansas.
I think it's a reason -- one is since I am not only

the‘program officer in Arkansas, I'm also the enforcement
officer, so it got more attention. We have -- we are --
we have done orderé in Texas, Arkansas. We've done the
Tinker in Oklahoma.

I agree we haven't done many in Oklahoma, but. that's

neither here nor there. This is a regional office, it's

not .a state office. We don't really say, well, we have to

do so many in this state and so many in that state, it's

just where -- where the necessity to do a complaint pops
up.
Thank you.

Uh-huh.

And part of this, the story here is that'you, when
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you had decided to inspect RAM, notified someone at the

CCC that you were -- that EPA was going to come do that

inspection, correct?

- Actually, my -- my involvement is the fact that Greg
was going to.do all these inspections. And becaﬁéé of his
gschedule -- and I don't remember the exact details -- hel
was not able to do them, aﬁd basically my supervisor said,
"well, you will do them," which I did.

2And, of course, I contacted the OCC and let them know
that we were going to do our inspections and we would like
to have them go along with us to do these inépectiohs,
to —~.it's aﬁ exchange -- it's a good peolicy for us,
because it's an exchange of good information; we learn
from them, they iearn from us. We geﬁ to see how they do
their compliance inspection, they get to see how we do.
It's a good exchange of inspector knowledge.

Who did you call at the OCC to advise them that you
were going to Oklahoma to do an UST inspection?

Actually,rl think it was Greg Pashia first‘contacted
John. And then I -- in order to work out the logistics of
when I was coming, where I was going to be, I-contacted
Mr. Roberts.

Okay. 1It's your understanding that Mr. Pashia called
Mr. Roberts? |

I'm assuming he did. - I know he contacted OCC to make
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all these arrangements. Because I -- like I said, T had
no involvement in this until it came to the point where T
had to actually do the inspections.

And then your -- when did that happen?

I'm trying to think. It's -- since I did the
inSpéctions in Februéry, I think -- it waé probably
several wéeks before that where we tried to figure out who
was gding to do the inspection -- or Greg couldn't do the
iﬁspections and I could, and where I was going to go.

My -- my involvement is I wanted to be able to do the
inépections within a close pfox -- proximity of each other

so that I would not have to spend more than a day or two

~out in the field. Because with my workload, I had to -- I

had to get back to the office, also.

The MOA fequires that EPA give at least 10 days'
notice to the Corporation Commission before an inspection
within Oklahoma, correct? |

I -- I don't know about that rule. I know that we
cooperate very well with ocur state counterparts. And
apparently, 1f there was a 10-day requirement, éither it
was waived.by both sides, or there was more than 10 days.
I'm assuming thére wags more than 10 days' notificatién.

Well, let me just simply -- simply direct you to
page 10, the first paragraph-thaf begins} "Undgrground

Storage Tank facility."
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The first sentence, which begins on the third liné,
says; "before conducting én inspection of a facility, the
Regional Administrator will give the State at least iO
days' notice of the intent to inspect." Do you see that?

Uh-huh. Yes, I see that. |

Ckay.

But like I gaid, I'm not -- I'm not involved in the

- preliminary discussions with OCC and EPA. I would assume

that this -- this was already discussed much -- at least
within that 10-day period. .

All right. But there is no record of that, is there,
gir?

I don't know if there is any record or not. Like I
said, I -- I am not the Oklahoma program officer, I had 7o
involvement, other than to do the inspections; I'm the
wrong witness for this.

I believe we had asked for all of the EPA records
regarding this inspection, aﬁd there is no copy of such
record. Without a contact, according to the_MOA, your
entry into Oklahoma would be unlawful, sir.

'Il—— I would not say that. I think there had to be a
lot of ﬁerbal. "EPA just doesn't come in and say, "we're
going to do inspections in your state, whether you like it
or not.™"

It has been a cooperation between all of our states.
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We have never come.into a state, at least in the UST
program, without cooperation with the state. ‘There was no
need to do that. |

All right. But we just need to take your word for
it, unlike your willingness to take the word that tests
haﬁe been done if we can't find a record, even though a
month and a half after we should have tested we get it
tested, and it holds the pressure; which tells us for sure
that it would have passed if it had been inspected on -- I
know‘ﬁe don't have the record, but you don't have the
record -- |

I said I don't have the fecord. Greg has the record.
If there's é record, he was had the record (sic) of the
communications.

Okay. Nonetheless --

I'm not saying there is no record, I'm just saying I
am not aware --

All right.

-- of the communications that occurred between OCC
and the state -- and EPA.

I understand.

MS. DIXON: Your Honor.~—
(By Mr. sShipley:} Let's skip down to --
MS. DIXON: -- we would have to object at this

point. There's no requirement in the MOA that the
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record has to be in writing. The record can be made
verbally.

THE WITNESS: And normally, that's what we do,
is we call them up and say, "we want to do
inspections," or they want ;; they want some
assistance or whatever, you know.

(By Mr. Shipley:) I -- I don't -- I don't intend to
suggest that if has Eo be, I simply am pointing out here

that there is no specific testimony available, much less a

record of a telephone call, that is -- that is required

for your lawful entry into the state of Oklahoma for UsT
inspection;
MS. DIXON: And I --
Well, and I -- and I -- I will have to add this,
though; I will say that the state was well aware that we

were going to do an inspection, because we had asked them

for the registration forms and the information to conduct -

én inspection.

(By Mr. shipley:}) I'm simply asking --

So -~

-- when you did that.

I don't have my records in front of me, but they did
submit ué the informatioh about the facilities.

I'm -- I'm willing to move on.

MS. DIXON: I -- I just want to disagree for the




